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must submit a FOIA request pursuant 
to 49 U.S.C. 552 and 49 CFR part 7. Por-
tions of the EIR may be exempt from 
disclosure pursuant to FOIA. 

§ 1503.13 Consent orders. 

(a) At any time before the issuance of 
an order under this subpart, the official 
who issued the notice and the person 
subject to the notice may agree to dis-
pose of the case by the issuance of a 
consent order by the official. 

(b) A proposal for a consent order, 
submitted to the official who issued 
the notice, under this section must in-
clude— 

(1) A proposed order; 
(2) An admission of all jurisdictional 

facts; 
(3) An express waiver of the right to 

further procedural steps and of all 
rights to judicial review; and 

(4) An incorporation of the notice by 
reference and an acknowledgment that 
the notice may be used to construe the 
terms of the order. 

§ 1503.15 Civil penalties: Civil pen-
alties involving an amount in con-
troversy in excess of $ 50,000, an in 
rem action, or injunctive relief. 

(a) Any person who violates any pro-
vision of 49 U.S.C. chapter 449 (except 
sections 44902, 44903(d), 44907(a)– 
(d)(1)(A), 44907(d)(1)(C)–(f), 44908, and 
44909), or a regulation prescribed or 
order issued under any of those provi-
sions, is subject to a civil penalty of 
not more than the amount specified for 
each violation in accordance with 49 
U.S.C. 46301, in conformity with the 
Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Ad-
justment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. 2461 
(note), as amended. 

(b) The authority of the Adminis-
trator, under 49 U.S.C. 46301 to propose 
a civil penalty for a violation of that 
chapter, or a rule, regulation, or order 
issued thereunder, and the ability to 
refer cases to the United States Attor-
ney General, or the delegate of the At-
torney General, for prosecution of civil 
penalty actions proposed by the Ad-
ministrator, involving an amount in 
controversy in excess of $ 50,000, an in 
rem action, or suit for injunctive re-
lief, or for collection of an assessed 
civil penalty, is delegated to the Chief 

Counsel and the Deputy Chief Counsel 
for Civil Enforcement. 

(c) The Administrator may com-
promise any civil penalty, proposed in 
accordance with 49 U.S.C. 46301, involv-
ing an amount in controversy in excess 
of $ 50,000, an in rem action, or suit for 
injunctive relief, prior to referral of 
the civil penalty action to the United 
States Attorney General, or the dele-
gate of the Attorney General, for pros-
ecution. 

(1) The Administrator, through the 
Chief Counsel or the Deputy Chief 
Counsel for Civil Enforcement, will 
send a civil penalty letter to the person 
charged with a violation of 49 U.S.C. 
chapter 449 (except sections 44902, 
44903(d), 44907(a)–(d)(1)(A), 
44907(d)(1)(C)–(f), 44908, and 44909), or a 
regulation prescribed or order issued 
under any of those provisions. The civil 
penalty letter contains a statement of 
the charges; the applicable law, rule, 
regulation, or order; the amount of 
civil penalty that the Administrator 
will accept in full settlement of the ac-
tion or an offer to compromise the civil 
penalty. 

(2) Not later than 30 days after re-
ceipt of the civil penalty letter, the 
person charged with a violation may 
present any material or information in 
answer to the charges to the agency at-
torney, either orally or in writing, that 
may explain, mitigate, or deny the vio-
lation or that may show extenuating 
circumstances. The Administrator will 
consider any material or information 
submitted in accordance with this 
paragraph (c) to determine whether the 
person is subject to a civil penalty or 
to determine the amount for which the 
Administrator will compromise the ac-
tion. 

(3) If the person charged with the vio-
lation offers to compromise for a spe-
cific amount, that person must send a 
certified check or money order for that 
amount to the agency, made payable to 
the Transportation Security Adminis-
tration. The Chief Counsel or the Dep-
uty Chief Counsel for Civil Enforce-
ment may accept the certified check or 
money order or may refuse and return 
the certified check or money order. 

(4) If the offer to compromise is ac-
cepted by the Administrator, the agen-
cy will send a letter to the person 
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